
City of Keene Minor Project Review Committee 

AGENDA 

Thursday, March 2, 2023     10:00 AM  City Hall, 2nd Floor Council Chambers 

I. Call to Order – Roll Call

II. Minutes of Previous Meetings – January 26, 2023 & February 2, 2023

III. Final Vote on Conditional Approvals

IV. Public Hearing

SPR-06-19, Modification #1 – Site Plan – 20 Manchester St - Applicant and owner 560 Main
Street LLC, proposes to lease a portion of the Froling site at 20 Manchester St (TMP #114-012-
000) to Phil’s Tree Service for equipment and truck storage, create a second open yard rental
space, construct an addition ~3,750 sf in size to an already approved 10,000 sf building, and
make minor modifications to the landscaping and parking. The property is 9.88 ac and is located
in the Industrial District.

V. Upcoming Meeting Dates
• Pre-submission Meeting - March 2, 2023 at 9:00 am
• 1st Monthly MPRC Meeting - March 2, 2023 at 10:00 am
• 2nd Monthly MPRC Meeting – March 16, 2023 at 10:00 am (If needed)

1 of 32



City of Keene 1 
New Hampshire 2 

 3 
 4 

MINOR PROJECT REVIEW COMMITTEE 5 
MEETING MINUTES 6 

 7 
Thursday, January 26, 2023               10:00 AM Council Chambers, 

City Hall 
Members Present: 
Don Lussier 
Jesse Rounds, Chair 
John Rogers 
Don Farquhar 
Med Kopczynski, Vice Chair 
 
Members Not Present: 
Kürt Blomquist, Alternate 
Mari Brunner, Alternate 
Mike Hagan, Alternate 
Steve Dumont, Alternate 
 
 

Other Staff Present: 
Megan Fortson, Planning Technician 
 

 8 
1) Call to Order – Roll Call 9 

 10 
Mr. Rogers called the meeting to order at 10:00 AM.  Roll call was conducted.  11 
 12 
2) Election of Chair and Vice Chair 13 

 14 
Mr. Rogers nominated Jesse Rounds as Chair.  Mr. Lussier seconded the motion, which passed by 15 
unanimous vote. 16 
 17 
Mr. Rogers nominated Mr. Kopczynski as Vice Chair.  Mr. Farquhar seconded the motion, which 18 
passed by unanimous vote.  19 
 20 

3) Minutes of Previous Meeting – December 8, 2022 21 
 22 
Mr. Rogers made a motion to approve the minutes of December 8, 2022.  Mr. Kopczynski 23 
seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous vote. 24 
 25 

4) Final Vote on Conditional Approvals 26 
 27 

2 of 32



MPRC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
January26, 2023 

Page 2 of 12 
 

Chair Rounds asked if the committee needs to vote on any conditional approvals.  Ms. Fortson 28 
replied no. 29 
 30 

5) Public Hearing 31 
 32 

A. SPR-204, Modification #3 – Site Plan – 216 Marlboro St. – Applicant Randall Walter, 33 
on behalf of owner, 216 Marlboro St LLC, proposes to replace the existing vinyl siding 34 
with new vertical metal siding and install rooftop equipment on the building at 216 35 
Marlboro St. (TMP #589-016-000).  The site is 0.97 acres and is located in the 36 
Neighborhood Business District. 37 
 38 

Chair Rounds asked if staff has a recommendation for completeness of the application.  Ms. 39 
Fortson replied that the applicant has requested exemptions from providing a proposed conditions 40 
plan, an existing conditions plan, allocation map, lighting plan, landscaping plan, and all technical 41 
reports.  She continued that staff recommends the committee grant the requested exemptions and 42 
accept the application as complete.   43 
 44 
Mr. Farquhar made a motion to accept the application as complete.  Mr. Lussier seconded the 45 
motion, which passed by unanimous vote.  46 
 47 
Chair Rounds asked the applicant to present. 48 
 49 
Randall Walter stated that the site plan is on the screen.  He explained the locations in the image.  50 
He continued that neighbors include U-Haul across the street, residential properties to the west, 51 
and the Kingsbury property and others to the east.  The site is bounded by Beaver Brook on the 52 
east and north.  The primary reason he ended up here today has to do with the siding.  They are 53 
working on obtaining a sign permit, which will include the physical signs on the site and rooftop 54 
equipment related to the business, KEB Mechanical Systems, the primary resident of 216 Marlboro 55 
St. He explained that some signage installed about five years ago has been incorporated into this 56 
application.  The building is comprised of three sections.  The northern section is sided with metal 57 
siding with a blue mountain scheme that was installed in about 2015 or 2016. The new siding is 58 
well described in the application.  The southernmost portion of the building has a green and white 59 
theme with trees and is preliminarily depicted here.  There were some edits, but conceptually it is 60 
the same.  There is a bit of remaining vinyl siding facing the neighbor.  The vinyl siding was in 61 
bad condition on the front of the building, due to damage from snow plowing and things like that.  62 
It was quite architecturally inappropriate for this building.  Flat roof architecture and vinyl siding 63 
are not great.  They did some window replacement, again, going with a commercial window as 64 
opposed to the out-of-date Anderson product that was on it.  All those are the same.   65 
 66 
Mr. Walter continued that a theme the Committee will hear over and over is that a lot of this work 67 
is the same as what it was, and they are simply trying to make this building more friendly and 68 
appropriate and perhaps a bit colorful, to compete with the visual impact of businesses like U-69 
Haul.  U-Haul has technically over 100 signs, if you count every vehicle that has logos on all four 70 

3 of 32



MPRC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
January26, 2023 

Page 3 of 12 
 

sides.  Thus, it is a very busy visual area.  He thinks this the proposed building exterior is more 71 
pleasant than having something, like the car dealership that previously occupied by the building.  72 
The precedent for metal siding is strong, as it was used on the original Subaru dealership that 73 
occupied the building.  Staff helped him dig out some archives from the 1970s that show that the 74 
building was previously covered in vertical metal siding.  Mr. Walter noted that no permitting was 75 
ever done when the vinyl siding was installed.  They want to go back to a more sustainable, more 76 
durable, metal siding that is appropriate and consistent with the neighborhood.  There is metal 77 
siding on many of the Kingsbury buildings, stretching all the way to 310 Marlboro St., so he thinks 78 
metal siding is appropriate and a better choice. 79 
 80 
Mr. Walter continued that regarding other topics that are part of this, the first coat of paving was 81 
completed last summer.  That was done identical to what was there previously.  There will be a 82 
topcoat this year but no proposed changes to the parking configuration.  After that, it will be striped 83 
according to the site plan sketch that they applied, but he would call it more of a “site diagram” 84 
than a “site plan.”  It is not a survey.  It is an accurate representation of the building and the 85 
placement of the building.  They do not have a boundary survey for this property, so that has been 86 
imposed from satellite images.  He believes that the satellite images they look at are different from 87 
what the committee has access to, which may to lead to some conversation about whether it is 88 
closer to a neighboring building.  However, at this point, there are no changes.  It will be re-striped 89 
to all of the standards for ADA and the way it was before.  The two curb cuts are staying the same.  90 
There are no other changes proposed. 91 
 92 
Chair Rounds thanked the applicant and asked if the committee had any clarifying questions.   93 
 94 
Mr. Rogers stated that he has a question about the site diagram, which is very different from what 95 
he has seen on site and what he has seen from the 2015 aerials, in terms of pavement.  He continued 96 
that one of his concerns is that the impervious surface the applicants have listed is much higher 97 
than what is allowed in this district.  He did a calculation based off the 2015 aerials.  He is showing 98 
a little over 25,000 square feet of impervious surface, whereas the applicants’ diagram says over 99 
32,000 square feet.   100 
 101 
Mr. Walter replied that they were simply trying to measure what is on the drawing.  Mr. Rogers 102 
replied that is part of his concern, too – the applicants’ drawing shows a good grass belt on the 103 
back of the building, which appears to have been, slowly over the years, converted into outdoor 104 
storage.  Gravel was placed there.  It appears to have been paved as well.  He is concerned about 105 
the amount of impervious surface that has been done on this lot, especially near the brook, without 106 
possibly any sort of attention to stormwater issues. 107 
 108 
Mr. Walter replied that their intention is to simply represent that the same amount was paved.  He 109 
continued that they are here regarding siding.  They did not get a boundary survey.  He imagines 110 
that given the shape, different mathematical numbers would come up.  He simply did it as a 111 
percentage of the lot size.  They can compare notes at some point if Mr. Rogers wants.  He thinks 112 
the more impactful thing is that the paving that was just done, which will be top-coated this year, 113 

4 of 32



MPRC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
January26, 2023 

Page 4 of 12 
 

is the same as what it was.  [He does not know] how it got there, in other incremental steps from 114 
– he does not know what the reference would be.  He does not know when the last time was when 115 
they had an impervious number for that site.  He has not been given anything.  He did not know 116 
that this site was on record as having X.  The only reason he is bringing it up is because they were 117 
asked to bring it up, and he is saying, the amount of impervious surface has remained the same.  118 
They were doing a siding project, and [impervious surface] was added to the list he was asked to 119 
comment on.   120 
 121 
Mr. Lussier asked, if the site has evolved over the years, would the existing condition that the 122 
committee looks at for impervious surface be the previously approved site plan from whenever 123 
this was done?  He continued that he is looking at the approved site plan for SPR-204, which is in 124 
the packet.  It looks like (it is from) 1978.  It looks like on the eastern side the pavement extends 125 
closer to the brook than it does today.  He is questioning whether that is the established baseline, 126 
or if the baseline is 2015, or how they decide that.   127 
 128 
Mr. Rogers replied that that is a good question and he defers to the Chair.  He continued that he is 129 
not sure.  The applicant is stating that they are before the committee today for the siding of the 130 
building.  The overall lot coverage and such is an issue they might have to take up outside of this 131 
application.  There are some concerns there.  Even going back to the 2015 plan, and the 2015 132 
aerials, it is not consistent with the site plan Mr. Lussier just referenced, so obviously some changes 133 
have been done to this site without going through the site plan process.  At this point in time, he 134 
would just take the applicant’s comment that they are here today regarding the siding.  However, 135 
he wants the applicant to be aware that they might need to discuss the [impervious surface] possibly 136 
outside of this committee. 137 
 138 
Mr. Kopczynski stated that they know that buildings and sites are sometimes changed without any 139 
sort of approval from the City.  He continued that they assume, but do not know, that the site was 140 
constructed to the site plan.  They do not know how carefully the paving contractor followed the 141 
plan at the time.  However, he does take note that today’s application is for siding.  It has nothing 142 
to do with the site plan.  Chair Rounds replied yes, he thinks that is fair to say.  He continued that 143 
as Mr. Rogers noted, they want to focus on the siding.  However, they do need to address the 144 
impervious surface, especially close to the brook.  They will need to have a discussion in the future.  145 
For now, they will stick to the topic of siding.  He asked if there were any other comments or 146 
questions about the plan. 147 
 148 
Mr. Rogers stated that he knows they talked about the rooftop units being looked at as signage.  149 
He asked the applicant if they have gotten to a point of doing any calculations yet on that, for a 150 
sign permit.  Mr. Walter replied that his understanding was that they need to have this committee’s 151 
blessing that they can count the rooftop units as signage, and then they will work backwards from 152 
the existing signage.  He continued that he wants to clarify with this committee that it is his 153 
understanding that they are taking the surface area of one side, the primary face, of the rooftop 154 
units.  They are three-dimensional objects.  They are not counting their volume or anything like 155 
that.  Their goal is to take the allowable signage, and they will work backwards from that number, 156 

5 of 32



MPRC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
January26, 2023 

Page 5 of 12 
 

deducting existing signage to remain.  Those will be in the secondary calculation for the face area 157 
of those five rooftop units.  Then, any balance will be used in some window art, which will also 158 
be signage.  He thought they needed to agree that those would be allowed to go that way, before 159 
they would submit for a sign permit. 160 
 161 
Mr. Rogers replied that is fine; he just wanted to make sure the applicants were looking down that 162 
path.  Mr. Walter replied that they are asking this committee to understand the unique circumstance 163 
– the mechanical equipment is the product, no different from how a U-Haul truck is the product.  164 
They would like those to not have to be screened for the purposes of recognizing the signage.  They 165 
are state of the art, with green technology.  This is an all-electric product.  Bergeron Mechanical 166 
has focused on this technology to move away from fossil fuels.  They need the product to be 167 
visible.  It is useful, in the same way that it is useful to U-Haul to have all those trucks, trailers, 168 
and equipment (visible).  They are fairly benign in this location.  He has seen less attractive 169 
versions, ground-mounted in front of a building.  To be clear, there is a sign, a big arrow on the 170 
roof saying, ‘this is what we’re selling,’ which they will count in the sign permit calculation that 171 
they submit.  They are looking for this committee to say, ‘yes, that is okay,’ and then they will 172 
look back in a different process to get their sign permit. 173 
 174 
Chair Rounds asked if there was any public comment.  Seeing no members of the public present, 175 
he closed the public hearing and asked the committee to deliberate. 176 
 177 
Mr. Lussier made a motion to approve SPR-204, Modification #3, as presented.  Mr. Farquhar 178 
seconded the motion. 179 
 180 
Mr. Rogers stated that regarding the rooftop units and signage, as the Zoning Official, he and his 181 
staff have looked at this.  He continued that while roof signage is prohibited under the Zoning 182 
Code, this building is unique in that there are different tiers to the roofing system.  These rooftop 183 
units are on the lower tier, so as a backdrop they have another vertical plane of the other building 184 
behind them, so he does not look at these as “rooftop.”  On that portion of the building, you would 185 
be able to attach signage there.  The visual of these units are that it appears that they are sitting in 186 
front of that vertical plane.  The Sign Code sits in the Zoning Code, and as the Zoning 187 
Administrator, he has made the determination that these could be considered signage.  They will 188 
have to meet the square footage requirements, and as has been mentioned, it would be just the front 189 
side of these units that would be included in the calculations.  That is the normal calculation - 190 
whether it be a free-standing sign or projecting sign, the measurement is that one side.  If the 191 
calculations determine that not all of these units can be considered part of the signage, screening 192 
is needed for whichever units would not be able to be part of that calculation.  That is a 193 
recommendation he would like added to the motion. 194 
 195 
Mr. Kopczynski stated that he thanks Mr. Rogers for the clarification, because he would have 196 
objected to this committee being asked to make an interpretation of the Zoning Code.  He 197 
continued that this committee has no authority to do that. 198 
 199 

6 of 32



MPRC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
January26, 2023 

Page 6 of 12 
 

Mr. Lussier asked if the motion to approve would be conditioned upon application for and approval 200 
of a sign permit.  Mr. Rogers replied yes, they have a recommended motion from staff, and they 201 
will have to add some conditions if this committee were inclined to approve.  A condition of an 202 
approved sign permit as part of the motion would cover that.  They might want to discuss the 203 
possibility of screening one or more of the units, and screening material, just so the applicant would 204 
not have to come back to this committee if it was determined that some screening had to be done.  205 
That would be his only caution there. 206 
 207 
Mr. Kopczynski stated that A) that is in the background notes, and he thinks the applicant 208 
understands that, and B) for Mr. Rogers to issue a permit it has to be in conformance with the 209 
Zoning Code as he determines it, so he does not see that issue.  He continued that his objection 210 
would have been this committee being asked to interpret the Zoning Code. 211 
 212 
Mr. Lussier asked what happens if it is determined that in order to get the sign permit the applicants 213 
have to screen.  He continued that normally, this committee would have to approve the screening 214 
materials and aesthetics.  He asked if the Department would be able to approve the screening 215 
materials and aesthetics administratively.  Chair Rounds replied that he is not sure.  He asked Ms. 216 
Fortson for thoughts.  Ms. Fortson replied that the recommended motion includes “…either 217 
documentation demonstrating that the rooftop condensers are permitted under the Sign Code or 218 
screened in accordance with Section 20.6 of the Land Development Code,” which addresses the 219 
screening standards.  She thinks that if the committee decided it was appropriate to include a 220 
condition like that, it would address both the Sign Code and, if there were units that were not 221 
included as part of the sign calculation, they would need to be screened.  If the committee is 222 
comfortable leaving that up to the purview of staff, they could sign off on the condition as long as 223 
it met the screening requirements.   224 
 225 
Mr. Lussier replied that to be clear, he is just trying to make sure the applicants do not need to 226 
return to this committee for that.  Ms. Fortson replied yes, if they included that in the condition, 227 
staff would make sure the screening was done. 228 
 229 
Mr. Rogers stated that they might want to clarify the applicant’s comments about the site diagram 230 
and their understanding that this is not a site plan.  He continued that the actual site plan for this 231 
property would still be the one from 1978.  Even though this site diagram is being referenced as a 232 
site plan or proposed condition plan, that is not the intent of the document.  This site diagram is 233 
not part of the modification being done to the overall site plan.  Chair Rounds replied that that 234 
makes sense.  He continued that he thinks one of the proposed conditions, if the committee chooses 235 
to approve this, is in reference to impervious surface, and that gets at that point of how this is not 236 
a site plan, but rather a modification of an existing site plan. 237 
 238 
Mr. Kopczynski asked if it is enough to go back to the original application, which is to change the 239 
siding.  He continued that everything else is peripheral.  Chair Rounds replied that they do need to 240 
address it in this situation, with respect to the signs, with respect to the impervious surface, and so 241 
on and so forth.  Mr. Kopczynski replied that this has nothing to do with the impervious surface; 242 

7 of 32



MPRC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
January26, 2023 

Page 7 of 12 
 

the applicants are changing the siding.  Chair Rounds replied that it is up to the committee.  If Mr. 243 
Kopczynski wants to take it out, he is welcome to do so.  Mr. Kopczynski replied that that is up to 244 
the person who made the motion. 245 
 246 
Mr. Lussier stated that the applicants have an approved site plan from 197[8].  He continued that 247 
if the Community Development Department finds that the applicants are not in compliance with 248 
that site plan, he thinks that would be a separate matter they could then address with the applicant.  249 
Chair Rounds replied that is correct.  Mr. Lussier asked if they can then leave it out of this matter.  250 
Chair Rounds replied yes. 251 
 252 
Mr. Lussier made a motion for the Minor Project Review Committee to approve SPR-204, 253 
Modification #3, for changes to architectural and visual appearance as shown on the site plan and 254 
identified as Permit Set 216 Marlboro St., Keene, NH 03431, Parcel ID 589-016-000-000, prepared 255 
by Randall Walter at a scale of 1”=40’ on January 24, 2023 and on the elevations identified as 256 
existing conditions 216 Marlboro St., Keene, NH 03431, Parcel ID 589-016-000-000, prepared by 257 
Randall Walter at a scale of 1/8”=1’ on August 8, 2022, with the following conditions precedent 258 
prior to signature by the Minor Project Review Committee Chair: 259 
 260 

1) Property owner’s signature appears on the site plan. 261 
2) Submittal of five full-size copies and one digital copy of the site plan and color elevations. 262 
3) Submittal of a revised site plan showing the extent of the impervious area on the site, the 263 

zoning district, the lot coverage calculations, the location of the access aisle for the 264 
accessible parking space, site features, and the location of five rooftop condenser units on 265 
the building. 266 

4) Submittal of documentation to demonstrate that the proposed rooftop condensers are either 267 
permitted under the Sign Code or screened in accordance with Section 20.6 of the Land 268 
Development Code. 269 

 270 
Mr. Rogers stated that he recommends that 3) be reduced to remove the ‘impervious area on the 271 
site’ language.  He continued that they still would need to see the correct zoning district, because 272 
this plan shows this property as being in the Business Growth and Reuse District and it is actually 273 
in the Neighborhood Business District.  Showing the accessible parking and the rooftop condensers 274 
would be fine. 275 
 276 
Mr. Lussier agreed to Mr. Rogers’ change to the motion, to read as follows:  277 
 278 
“motion for the Minor Project Review Committee to approve SPR-204, Modification #3, for 279 
changes to architectural and visual appearance as shown on the site plan and identified as Permit 280 
Set 216 Marlboro St., Keene, NH 03431, Parcel ID 589-016-000-000, prepared by Randall Walter 281 
at a scale of 1”=40’ on January 24, 2023 and on the elevations identified as existing conditions 282 
216 Marlboro St., Keene, NH 03431, Parcel ID 589-016-000-000, prepared by Randall Walter at 283 
a scale of 1/8”=1’ on August 8, 2022, with the following conditions precedent prior to signature 284 
by the Minor Project Review Committee Chair: 285 

8 of 32



MPRC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
January26, 2023 

Page 8 of 12 
 

 286 
1) Property owner’s signature appears on the site plan. 287 
2) Submittal of five full-size copies and one digital copy of the site plan and color elevations. 288 
3) Submittal of a revised site plan showing the zoning district, the lot coverage calculations, 289 

the location of the access aisle for the accessible parking space, site features, and the 290 
location of five rooftop condenser units on the building. 291 

4) Submittal of documentation to demonstrate that the proposed rooftop condensers are either 292 
permitted under the Sign Code or screened in accordance with Section 20.6 of the Land 293 
Development Code.” 294 

 295 
Mr. Rogers seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous vote. 296 

 297 
6) Adoption of Amended 2023 Meeting Schedule 298 

 299 
Chair Rounds stated that they had to make a change to the MPRC’s meeting schedule.  He 300 
continued that currently, they have two monthly meetings, generally holding the second meeting 301 
on an as-needed basis.  However, closer reading of the LDC revealed that through the creation of 302 
the MPRC, the pre-submission meeting that is required of all applicants for site plans falls under 303 
the MPRC’s purview and is therefore a public meeting.  The pre-submission meeting needs to be 304 
noticed to the public and needs to have a minute-taker and [follow the guidelines for public 305 
meetings].  Currently it is one Wednesday morning per month.  Staff proposes bringing that pre-306 
submission meeting into the MPRC’s current meeting schedule.  Thus, twice a month, people who 307 
have pre-submission applications would come to the MPRC meeting and the MPRC would have 308 
their discussion with them at that meeting. 309 
 310 
Mr. Rogers stated that the number of people he sees sitting at this table, and the number of people 311 
he sees at a pre-submission meeting, are not the same.  He asked if the additional staff would be 312 
invited when there is a pre-submission application on the MPRC’s agenda.  For example, staff 313 
from Police, Public Works, or other Community Development staff who are not MPRC members, 314 
speaking as staff from the audience.  Chair Rounds replied yes, he thinks that is how it would 315 
work.  He continued that since both of these meetings will happen every month, it means that such 316 
staff members who are members of pre-submission meetings but not members of the MPRC will 317 
have to make this a standing meeting on their schedules.  He had not contemplated that until Mr. 318 
Rogers brought it up. 319 
 320 
Ms. Fortson stated that the first MPRC meeting of each month allows people to walk in and receive 321 
advice and comment from the committee, since it is a responsibility of the committee.  She 322 
continued that the second meeting of the month is not a given, and will be held only if the MPRC 323 
has a continued public hearing or if someone has requested specifically to come to the meeting for 324 
advice and comment.  That is, the first is for walk-ins, and the second is for scheduled pre-325 
submission inquiries only.  Chair Rounds replied that that is very helpful. 326 
 327 

9 of 32



MPRC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
January26, 2023 

Page 9 of 12 
 

Mr. Lussier stated that he thinks the benefit and value of the pre-submission meeting is that it is, 328 
by definition, an informal opportunity for applicants to talk to staff as they are preparing their 329 
applications before they submit them.  He continued that even though he is all for transparency, 330 
he thinks that essentially turning it into a public hearing in front of a formal committee where 331 
minutes are kept, and so on and so forth, will result in losing the value of the pre-submission 332 
meeting.  Chair Rounds replied point taken, but with the way the LDC is written, because the 333 
members of the pre-submission meeting are either members of this committee or alternate 334 
members, a public body is created when they meet/create quorum.  Brief discussion ensued about 335 
who the alternate members are and the circumstances under which a quorum is created.  Mr. Rogers 336 
stated that this may be something to think about and it may require the reorganization of the pre-337 
submission team, although they need to be careful with who the alternates are from certain 338 
departments so they do not lose the needed expertise in the meetings.  Mr. Lussier replied that they 339 
could still have up to three members of the MPRC in the pre-submission meetings, but no more, 340 
since four is a quorum. 341 
 342 
Chair Rounds stated that he spoke with the City Attorney.  He continued that if they head down a 343 
path where they are skirting the rules just to avoid making it a public meeting that could be 344 
problematic.  That said, they could explore the idea of ensuring that no one who sits in the pre-345 
submission meetings is either an alternate or designee. For example, he as the Community 346 
Development Director has a designee, and Mr. Rogers as the Building and Health Official has a 347 
designee, but if, for example, Mr. Rogers and his designee are both unavailable, he can have an 348 
alternate sit in for him in the MPRC.  As Mr. Rogers said, they start working down the ladder of 349 
responsibility. 350 
 351 
Mr. Kopczynski stated that he thinks Mr. Lussier is right.  Chair Rounds replied that he hears him 352 
but disagrees.  He continued that the other problem is that the LDC explicitly says that the pre-353 
submission meeting is the responsibility of the MPRC.  They are tied together; the pre-submission 354 
meeting is created as an extension of this committee.  They can leave this open to more discussion, 355 
but currently they are in a bit of peril with respect to the purpose of the pre-submission meeting 356 
and whether they are taking notes.  They have absolutely discussed that the point of the pre-357 
submission meeting is to be informal, and this is not that space. 358 
 359 
Mr. Lussier stated that today Randall Walter was here, and he is an experienced applicant who 360 
knows the City’s system.  He continued that he could tell that when Mr. Walter walked in, he was 361 
surprised by the formality.  It is a different context.  He thinks they are losing something. 362 
 363 
Mr. Rogers stated that maybe this is a conversation to have with the City Attorney, but he wonders 364 
if it could be like having two different meetings in one.  He continued that for actual applications, 365 
they could go through the format as they did today, and then if they move into a pre-submission 366 
inquiry, they could change the format to make it more informal.  He agrees that being a little more 367 
informal tends to put people at ease.  Some people are already nervous walking through the doors 368 
to speak with them to begin with and adding that anxiety could be problematic at times. 369 
 370 

10 of 32



MPRC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
January26, 2023 

Page 10 of 12 
 

Chair Rounds replied that he does not see why they could not do it that way.  He continued that he 371 
is not sure why they have to meet in this room at all; they could use a different room.  Mr. Rogers 372 
replied that the main reason they use this room is for the Minute-taker, who is remote and using 373 
the recording.  Ms. Fortson replied that it is also because of the meeting recordings since this 374 
committee was created by the Planning Board.  She continued that the intent is to have the meeting 375 
recordings posted on the City website, because any decisions made by this committee are 376 
appealable.  Having that transparency to the public [is good].  The conference room does not have 377 
the same recording capabilities/set-up as here in Council Chambers.  Chair Rounds replied that he 378 
thinks they could come up with a way to make this space less formal.   379 
 380 
Mr. Lussier asked if there is an opportunity to correct the underlying problem where the LDC 381 
makes the pre-submission meeting an appendage of this committee.  Chair Rounds replied that 382 
they could look into that.  It would require modifying the LDC, which would take time.  The 383 
question is what to do in the meantime.  Ms. Fortson stated that they had discussed in the past 384 
making this a correction to the LDC, striking through the section that gives the MPRC the 385 
responsibility of reviewing pre-submission inquiries.  She continued that it comes down to the 386 
issue of the fact that they would still have a quorum of MPRC members if it were handled as a 387 
separate meeting.  Chair Rounds stated that he thinks the only real solution is to enshrine the 388 
members of the pre-submission meeting and try to make sure they are not at all related to the 389 
MPRC members.  He continued that that is the only way he sees to keep the two separate.  Mr. 390 
Lussier replied that that would work for the Public Works representative, but it may be more 391 
difficult for Code Enforcement, Fire, or Police. 392 
 393 
Mr. Kopczynski stated that one of the advantages of the informal meeting is that it is not all about 394 
the planning process.  He continued that the MPRC is a substitute to the Planning Board.  It (the 395 
pre-submission meeting) gives the Fire Chief time to talk about Fire Code requirements; it gives 396 
Mr. Rogers an opportunity to talk about what is needed for a building permit, [and so on and so 397 
forth].  It is less targeted, which is why it is so informal.  It is recognizing that someone has an idea 398 
for a project in mind and getting informal advice on how to advance that project.  Chair Rounds 399 
replied that he understands.  He continued that there is the intent, and then the reality of operating 400 
in NH.  He recognizes the concern, and agrees, and his reaction was the same as Mr. Kopczynski’s 401 
at first.  He thinks they can direct staff to go back and see if there is a way to identify a way forward 402 
by codifying who is in the pre-submission meeting. 403 
 404 
Mr. Lussier stated that the agenda item they are discussing is the meeting schedule, regardless of 405 
whether the pre-submission meeting is part of this committee’s purview.  He asked if they could 406 
approve this meeting schedule and ask that the Chair continue conversations with the City Attorney 407 
regarding finding a better alternative to the MPRC being responsible for the pre-submission 408 
meetings.  Chair Rounds replied that he thinks they can. 409 
 410 
Chair Rounds asked if it is correct that the meeting schedule in the agenda packet is the same as 411 
before, except for the asterisk note at the bottom.  Ms. Fortson replied yes, it is the same schedule, 412 
just on the first and third Thursdays of the month instead of the second and fourth.  She continued 413 

11 of 32



MPRC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
January26, 2023 

Page 11 of 12 
 

that they were going to handle the pre-submission portion by adding it as a standing agenda item.  414 
Adopting the calendar will not affect the question of whether they include the pre-submission as 415 
part of the meeting.  Mr. Lussier stated that the dates are different from the ones the committee 416 
previously approved, switching from the second and fourth Thursdays to the first and third.  Ms. 417 
Fortson replied that is correct. 418 
 419 
Mr. Rogers made a motion to approve the amended 2023 meeting schedule of the MPRC.  Mr. 420 
Lussier seconded the motion. 421 
 422 
Mr. Kopczynski asked what happens if they do not approve it.  Mr. Lussier replied that their next 423 
meeting would be February 9 instead of February 2.  Chair Rounds replied that if they do not 424 
approve it, they just go on with the schedule as it is now. 425 
 426 
Mr. Rogers stated that he thinks the change to the dates was to align better and give people more 427 
time, possibly, from pre-submission to application deadlines.  This gives more wiggle room.  Thus, 428 
regardless of where they land with this question of the pre-submission meetings, the changes to 429 
the meeting dates are beneficial to both staff and applicants.   430 
 431 
Mr. Lussier stated that to be clear, he has no issue with changing the meeting schedule.  He 432 
continued that his concern is about turning MPRC meetings into pre-submission meetings.  433 
 434 
Chair Rounds stated that a point of clarification is that approving this motion does not mean the 435 
MPRC is approving the pre-submission meetings as part of the MPRC meetings.   436 
 437 
The motion passed by unanimous vote.   438 
 439 

7) Upcoming Meeting Dates 440 
• February 2, 2023 at 10:00 AM 441 
• February 16, 2023 at 10:00 AM (if needed due to continued public hearing or pre-442 

submission inquiries) 443 
 444 
Chair Rounds stated that the next meeting is a week from today, Feb. 2.  Mr. Kopczynski replied 445 
that he is unavailable.  Chair Rounds replied that the City Manager will have to appoint someone 446 
to attend in Mr. Kopczynski’s place.  He continued that the following meeting is Feb. 16, if needed 447 
due to continued public hearing or pre-submission inquiries, although the latter is up for debate.  448 
He will move forward with that discussion and let the committee know how it goes. 449 
 450 

8) Adjournment 451 
 452 
There being no further business, Chair Rounds adjourned the meeting at 10:52 AM. 453 
 454 
Respectfully submitted by, 455 
Britta Reida, Minute Taker 456 

12 of 32



MPRC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
January26, 2023 

Page 12 of 12 
 

 457 
Reviewed and edited by, 458 
Megan Fortson, Planning Technician 459 
 460 

13 of 32



City of Keene 1 
New Hampshire 2 

 3 
 4 

MINOR PROJECT REVIEW COMMITTEE 5 
MEETING MINUTES 6 

 7 
Thursday, February 2, 2023               10:00 AM IT Training Room, 

City Hall 
Members Present: 
Don Lussier 
Jesse Rounds, Chair 
John Rogers 
Don Farquhar (arrived at 10:16 AM) 
Med Kopczynski, Vice Chair 
Mari Brunner, Alternate 
 
Members Not Present: 
Mike Hagan, Alternate 
Steve Dumont, Alternate 
Kürt Blomquist, Alternate 
 

Other Staff Present: 
Megan Fortson, Planning Technician 
 

1) Call to Order – Roll Call 8 
 9 
Chair Rounds called the meeting to order at 10:06 AM.  Roll call was conducted.  10 
 11 
2) Pre-submission Consultations – Informal review and comment on proposed projects 12 

for site plan review or subdivision review prior to the formal submission of an 13 
application.  Walk-ins accepted. 14 

 15 
Chair Rounds stated that for pre-submission consultations, they will wait and see if anyone shows 16 
up.  They will hold this open, and move on in the agenda in the meantime. 17 
 18 

3) Discussion Regarding the Format and Schedule for Pre-submission Meetings 19 
 20 
Chair Rounds stated that today is both a pre-submission meeting and a meeting of the MPRC.  He 21 
continued that what Ms. Brunner, Ms. Fortson, and he propose is to go back to an alternate version 22 
where the pre-submission meeting happens right before the regularly scheduled MPRC meeting, 23 
in this room.  It would not be recorded, but notes would be taken [by staff], roll call would be 24 
taken, and so on and so forth.  It would be an official meeting, noticed, with an agenda published 25 
beforehand, but it will be similar to what the pre-submission meetings were like before. 26 
 27 
Mr. Lussier stated that if Mr. Blomquist can designate Yelma [Desseta] as an alternate, he could 28 
attend the pre-submission meetings and he (Mr. Lussier) can continue to attend the MPRC 29 

14 of 32



MPRC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
February 2, 2023 

Page 2 of 3 
 

meetings.  Chair Rounds replied that that is his understanding.  Ms. Brunner replied that currently, 30 
Mr. Lussier is the designee from the Public Works Department, and Mr. Blomquist is the alternate, 31 
so instead of Mr. Blomquist being the alternate, Mr. Desseta would be. 32 
 33 
Mr. Rogers stated that there are other departments not represented in the MPRC that would still 34 
need to be at pre-submission meetings, such as Police.  He continued that Police staff members 35 
would be present for input.  It might be better if (Mr. Lussier) was here as part of the MPRC.  Mr. 36 
Lussier replied that he is trying to find a way to not have to attend both the pre-submission meetings 37 
and the MPRC meetings. 38 
 39 
Ms. Brunner stated that the intent would be to invite more staff than is represented on the MPRC.  40 
She continued that they would be attendees participating in the meeting.  The minutes would 41 
consist of a list of the members present, a list of others participating in the meeting, and a brief 42 
description of the topics discussed.  The fourth requirement under State law is to include any 43 
decisions the group makes, and she, Chair Rounds, and Ms. Fortson propose having no decisions 44 
made at the pre-submission meetings.  Even the adoption of the minutes can happen at normal 45 
MPRC meetings.  The pre-submission meetings will still be MPRC meetings, but the only item on 46 
the agenda will be pre-submission inquiries.  The meetings will be on Thursdays, and people will 47 
have until the end of the day on Tuesday to let the MPRC know if they want to attend and be listed 48 
on the agenda.  At the end of the meeting, they would also allow walk-ins. 49 
 50 
Chair Rounds stated that the normal MPRC meeting would only then happen if there were agenda 51 
items for it.  Mr. Lussier asked if they would be separately noticed meetings.  Chair Rounds replied 52 
yes.   53 
 54 
Ms. Brunner stated that the official MPRC meetings, such as for public hearings, will have detailed 55 
meeting minutes taken by the assigned minute-taker (from the City Clerk’s Office).  She continued 56 
that those meetings will be broadcast live and posted on the City’s website the day after, so they 57 
are much more publicly accessible.  They are also working with the Communications Department 58 
to make sure any decisions made at an MPRC meeting are posted online the next day, as the City 59 
Council actions are.  This is because a Supreme Court decision from last June affects when the 60 
appeal timeframe starts for abutters.  Staff is thus being more transparent about decisions that are 61 
made.  Under State statute, the MPRC has to follow all of the same procedures as a Planning Board.  62 
Planning Boards issue conditional approvals all the time, and most likely, so will the MPRC.  A 63 
conditional approval is not final until it is comes back to the MPRC to issue a final approval, at a 64 
publicly noticed meeting.  That starts the appeal timeframe for abutters, but abutters would not 65 
necessarily know when the MPRC has issued its final approval.  Thus, staff is trying to be extra 66 
transparent by publishing, the next day, the recording and the list of actions taken, so it is easier 67 
for abutters to follow along and see when a final decision was made. 68 
 69 
Mr. Kopczynski asked if the MPRC or the PB, when making a decision, does it in the form of a 70 
finding.  Ms. Brunner replied no.  She continued that the way that the “findings of fact” are 71 
included with the final decision is by having the meeting minutes from the deliberation attached.  72 

15 of 32



MPRC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
February 2, 2023 

Page 3 of 4 
 

She continued that this does bring up a good point.  A public meeting begins with the MPRC 73 
members voting on whether to accept the application as complete, and then the applicant gives a 74 
presentation, which MPRC members can then ask the applicant questions about.  The MPRC is 75 
not deliberating at that point.  Staff has a chance to do a presentation (more common at PB 76 
meetings than at MPRC meetings), and the public has a chance to speak.  The Chair could then 77 
invite the applicant back up to respond to any questions or concerns raised by the public, and so 78 
on and so forth.  Once the Chair closes the public comment period that is the critical time where 79 
the MPRC should be deliberating.  Those deliberations are the findings of fact that will support 80 
the MPRC’s decision.  If a decision is appealed, by either the developer or an abutter, those are 81 
the findings of fact the court would look at to see if the MPRC based its decision on information 82 
or a reason, or just personal feelings.  When the Chair says, “I’m closing the public hearing and 83 
opening it up for deliberation,” they do not want someone to immediately make a motion to 84 
approve.  Before making such a motion, they should say, for example, “I think the applicant has 85 
demonstrated that they meet all of our standards.” 86 
 87 
Mr. Rogers stated that it is okay to make a motion to approve, but even so, they still have to 88 
deliberate.  Ms. Brunner replied that is true.  Others agreed that it is okay for someone to make a 89 
motion and for the MPRC to then deliberate.  Mr. Rogers stated that the point is that while someone 90 
can make a motion right away, the group should not be voting on the motion right away.  Chair 91 
Rounds replied yes, the deliberations must happen. 92 
 93 
Mr. Lussier asked if there is a specific checklist of facts the MPRC should deliberate on, regarding 94 
determining, as Ms. Brunner stated, whether the application meets their standards.  Ms. Brunner 95 
replied yes, if they are approving something or approving something with conditions, all the 96 
MPRC needs to find is that the applicant has met all of the City’s standards.  She continued that 97 
denying a portion of an application is a whole different ballgame.   98 
 99 
Chief Farquhar arrived at 10:15 AM. 100 
 101 
Ms. Brunner continued that the MPRC needs to be very clear and specific about what they are 102 
denying and why.  If they decide to deny an entire application, they should hold off, and instead 103 
continue the public hearing to the next MPRC meeting, because they need to work with legal 104 
counsel to determine the proper language to include.  That is to make sure that the decision the 105 
MPRC makes is defensible in court.   106 
 107 
Mr. Kopczynski asked if that would be something like, “Based on what we have heard, we have 108 
some concerns, and we want to continue this deliberation to a date certain.”  Chair Rounds replied 109 
that that would typically be the next meeting.  Mr. Kopczynski stated that if it was some specific 110 
issue, it gives the opportunity for staff from whichever department to sit down with the City 111 
Attorney to craft the actual motion.  Ms. Brunner replied yes, or it could give the applicant time/a 112 
chance to correct something.  She continued that for example, if the MPRC is ready to deny the 113 
application because they do not think it meets the standards, they could decide to continue it to 114 
give the applicant time to submit information about how they will address certain concerns.  That 115 

16 of 32



MPRC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
February 2, 2023 

Page 4 of 5 
 

is something the MPRC could do.  They do have a specific timeframe within which they have to 116 
make a decision; she thinks it is 60 days. 117 
 118 
Mr. Rogers stated that typically the applicant would be back before the MPRC within a two-week 119 
window.  Mr. Lussier replied yes, that is the purpose of the second meeting of the month. 120 
 121 
Mr. Kopczynski stated that during the deliberations, there should be clarity so the applicant knows 122 
if there are concerns and has a chance to address them.  Others agreed.  Ms. Brunner stated that 123 
the Community Development Department always follows up after a MPRC meeting with a letter 124 
(to the applicant), summarizing any action taken by the MPRC, and they put in that letter any 125 
additional information the MPRC requested.  Thus, it is clear to the applicant that the matter was 126 
continued, and that the continuation was due to the MPRC’s concerns about XYZ.  That way, the 127 
applicant knows what to bring to the next meeting to address those concerns.  The State statute 128 
requires staff to do that.  Again, the MPRC’s deliberations are when they make all of that 129 
information clear. 130 
 131 
Ms. Brunner stated that it is unlikely, given the MPRC’s meeting schedule, but if they want to go 132 
beyond their decision timeline of 60 days - for whatever reason, such as the applicant being on a 133 
three-week vacation – the MPRC must get something in writing from the applicant that says that 134 
the applicant agrees to continue beyond that 60-day timeframe.  She continued that otherwise, the 135 
MPRC would need to either approve or deny the application within those 60 days.  They are 136 
allowed to deny based on not having sufficient information.  That is a valid reason.  In that case, 137 
they would deny an application without prejudice, so the applicant has a chance to try again. 138 
 139 
Mr. Kopczynski stated that there is a second half to his question.  He continued that this a PB 140 
process, where the MPRC is a substitute for the PB.  He is not aware of any definition of “abutter” 141 
in that case.  Ms. Brunner replied that “abutter” is anyone who is a direct abutter, which is the State 142 
definition, or across a road or a stream.  She continued that the City of Keene has expanded the 143 
definition to also include anyone within 200 feet.  Mr. Kopczynski asked if they put that in the 144 
Land Development Code (LDC).  Ms. Brunner replied yes.  She continued that the only board it 145 
is different for is the Historical District Commission (HDC), which only requires that direct 146 
abutters be noticed as part of the application process. 147 
 148 
Chair Rounds asked if everyone is okay with the plan and if everyone’s questions have been 149 
answered.  He continued that to recap, going forward the MPRC will hold pre-submission meetings 150 
the first Thursday of every month, in this room.  The meetings will be noticed, with an agenda 151 
published beforehand, but the meetings will be more informal.  Staff will take basic notes on who 152 
was there and what generally was discussed, and there will be an open format allowing walk-ins.  153 
Then the MPRC will meet on the first and third Thursdays, at 10:00 AM, in City Council 154 
Chambers, following the normal MPRC agenda.  If they do not have agenda items, they will not 155 
meet. 156 
 157 

17 of 32



MPRC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
February 2, 2023 

Page 5 of 6 
 

Mr. Lussier asked if the pre-submission meetings will be from 9:00 AM to 10:00 AM.  Ms. Fortson 158 
replied that the pre-submission meetings used to be at 8:30 AM.  She asked if an hour is enough 159 
time.  Ms. Brunner replied that they do not need to notice the meeting until 24 hours in advance 160 
and there is no public hearing, so they can wait until the end of the day on the Tuesday before the 161 
meeting to assess whether the number of items can be addressed in an hour.  Meetings will 162 
regularly be from 9:00 to 10:00 AM because it is rare to have more than three items, but if they 163 
get a lot of interest and have, say, six items for a pre-submission meeting, they can schedule it for 164 
8:30 AM.  If the pre-submission meeting runs late, that is okay.  They are not allowed to start a 165 
meeting early [without the 24-hour notice], but they are allowed to start the MPRC meeting late, 166 
as long as someone is at Council Chambers to tell people that the meeting is still going to happen 167 
and keep them updated.  That would be the contingency plan if there comes a time when 8:30 to 168 
10:00 AM is still not enough for the pre-submission meeting.  She hopes that the flexibility of 169 
starting the pre-submission meeting at 8:30 AM when needed will be enough. 170 
 171 
Chief Farquhar asked if the same person could sit in on the pre-submission meetings and the MPRC 172 
meetings, or if it has to be a different person.  Ms. Brunner replied that the same person can be at 173 
both meetings, and in fact, the pre-submission meetings need to have quorum to be held.  Chief 174 
Farquhar replied that that means he could then do both.  Ms. Brunner replied yes.  Mr. Lussier 175 
stated that he plans to have Mr. Desseta attend the pre-submission meetings as an alternate. 176 
 177 
Mr. Rogers asked what happens if a pre-submission meeting does not have any agenda items.  Do 178 
they still hold the meeting and wait for a certain amount of time, such as 15 minutes, to see if any 179 
walk-ins show up?  Mr. Kopczynski asked if the meeting notices specify a time by which walk-180 
ins have to show up, so they do not have people waiting until close to 10:00 to show up.  Mr. 181 
Lussier suggested the agenda say that walk-ins are welcome from [9:00 to 9:15 AM], and then if 182 
there are no walk-ins by 9:15 they could end the meeting.  Mr. Kopczynski replied yes, because 183 
he would hate for someone to show up at 9:20 to find an empty room. 184 
 185 
Ms. Brunner replied that Ms. Fortson has been emailing the list of ‘known entities’ who submit 186 
applications.  She continued that if someone calls, they can let them know about the pre-submission 187 
meeting and ask if they want to be on the agenda.  There is always the chance that someone will 188 
just walk in, but they have not seen that happen in years.  It used to be somewhat common before 189 
COVID, but even then, the walk-ins were people the City had worked with regularly.  During 190 
COVID, because the meetings were on Zoom, staff would email the known entities ahead of time 191 
and ask them to let staff know if they wanted to be on the agenda.  They have not had any walk-192 
ins since COVID. 193 
 194 
Ms. Brunner stated that one clarification is that the “notes” taken at pre-submission meetings will 195 
be official sets of minutes, but will only include the minimum the State RSA requires.  She 196 
continued that she proposes having the pre-submission meeting minutes adopted at the regular 197 
MPRC meetings.  Mr. Kopczynski asked why the minutes need to be approved.  Ms. Brunner 198 
replied that NH RSA 91-A requires it.  Mr. Rogers asked if it would be an issue if the MPRC 199 
members approving the pre-submission meeting minutes were not all present at the pre-submission 200 

18 of 32



MPRC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
February 2, 2023 

Page 6 of 6 
 

meeting.  Ms. Brunner replied that the people voting on the minutes do not necessarily need to be 201 
the people who were present at the meeting. 202 
 203 
Mr. Lussier stated that he has something that is not on the agenda.  He continued that yesterday, 204 
staff was working on staff comments on applications that were before the PB.  He asked if it is 205 
appropriate to bring up a question, he had about one of those, in this meeting.  Ms. Brunner and 206 
Chair Rounds replied yes.  Mr. Lussier stated that regarding the light industrial project by Black 207 
Brook, it will be about 850 feet from the hydrant back to the last building.  It occurred to him that 208 
they should have a second hydrant on the site.  Is that something Chief Farquhar would comment 209 
on or should he (Mr. Lussier) should stay in his lane?  Chief Farquhar replied that a collaborative 210 
approach is great, so if Mr. Lussier notices something he did not, it is good to speak up.  To him, 211 
the value of a group like this is that each person has their own lens, and everyone’s observations 212 
and opinions are better in the aggregate than individually.  Chair Rounds replied yes, that is the 213 
whole intent of this process.  Mr. Rogers agreed and stated that it is helpful to have other sets of 214 
eyes looking at these things and asking questions.  215 
 216 

4) Upcoming Meeting Dates  217 
• February 16, 2023 at 10:00 AM (if needed) 218 
• March 2, 2023 at 10:00 AM 219 

Ms. Fortson stated that there probably will be an agenda item for February 16. 220 
 221 

5) Adjournment 222 
 223 
There being no further business, Chair Rounds adjourned the meeting at 10:35 AM. 224 
 225 
Respectfully submitted by, 226 
Britta Reida, Minute Taker 227 
 228 
Reviewed and edited by, 229 
Megan Fortson, Planning Technician 230 

19 of 32



20 of 32



21 of 32



22 of 32



23 of 32
Approved Site Plan from SPR-06-19



R.C.E. NUMBER: 13365
LIZA P. SARGENT                       DATE



















September 20, 2019

560 MAIN STREET, LLC
560 MAIN STREET, KEENE, NEW  HAMPSHIRE

PREPARED BY

560 MAIN STREET, LLC





APPLICANT:








CITY OF KEENE
PROPERTY OWNER:









SVE PROJECT #: K2665



Brickstone
Land Use Consultants, LLC
Site Planning, Permitting and Development Consulting
185 Winchester Street, Keene, NH  03431
Phone: (603) 357-0116





Revised thru January 26, 2023

2/9/23

24 of 32



WF 11

WF 10

S63°52'57"E  443.03'

N63°52'57"W  430.99'

S70°02'28"E  168.31'

N70°02'28"W  177.00'

S54°16'31"E  231.72'

N54°16'31"W  220.72'

42.99'

48
0

48
0

480

476
478

480

480

492

490

480

474

474

480

480

48
0

480

470

480

480

474

476
478

480

482

486

488

472

47
2

474

476

47
8

470

472

490

486

482

482

486

480

478

48
6

474

474

476

48
2

ASPHALT

GRAVEL

PROPOSED
BUILDING
PHASE 1

F.F. ELEV. = 485.0

 TRUCK SHOP,
PHASE 2

F.F. ELEV.=483.0

R
O

O
F 

PI
TC

H
 7

%

6" C
U

R
B

6" CURB

48
5

SD

SD

SD

123

07

104

103

122

B

A

GRAVEL

GRAVEL

GRAVEL

GRAVEL

GRAVEL

GRAVEL

SD

SD

SD

OH

OFFICE, PHASE 2
F.F. ELEV.=483.0

481

482

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

2

3

1

4

-06

MW-11

-05/MW-5

-04

LIMITS OF PHASE II
LIMITS OF PHASE I

-121

-120

-119

-08

-11
-12

102

110

ROOF PITCH

ROOF PITCH

482

480

482

2%

1.6%

SD

SD

28.066ft

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

S

6" A
C

6" ACSMH RIM:

470.97

INV E: 465.0

INV SE:

465.5

INV W: 465.0

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

47
4

474

482

482

478

477

477

484

477 477

477

477

48248
2

480

48
0

488

486

484

48
4

48
2

481

47
4

476

482

47
4

474

47
2

48
0

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

47
4

47
7

474

472

47
2

47
7

484

48
2

47
8

ROOF PITCH

482

478

47
6

CORD
WOOD

PRODUCTION,
PHASE 2

F.F. ELEV.=483.0

482

47
9 47

9

48
0

48
0

480
478

481

481

480

478
478

482

479

480

DATE:

PROJ. #:

OVERALL SITE
PLAN

GRAPHIC SCALE 1" =

0 15' 30' 60'

30'

D
ra

w
in

g 
na

m
e:

 P
:\P

ro
je

ct
\N

H
 P

R
O

JE
C

TS
\K

26
65

 5
60

 M
ai

n 
St

re
et

, L
LC

\D
w

g\
K2

66
5 

SI
TE

 P
ha

se
 II

.d
w

g 
  F

eb
 0

9,
  2

02
3 

- 1
:1

5p
m

c

N
O

.
R

EV
IS

IO
N

D
AT

E
D

W
N

C
H

K

SHEET

C-1

N

560 MAIN STREET

560 MAIN STREET, LLC
Peterborough, NH 03458
590 Hancock Road

-SEPT- 1920

K2665K2665

DESIGN:  LPS
DRAWN: TS/LPS

SVE 2020

Engineering
Planning
Landscape Architecture
Surveying

SVE Associates
P.O. Box 1818
439 West River Road
Brattleboro, VT 05302
T   802.257.0561
F   802.257.0721
www.sveassoc.com

R.C.E. NUMBER: 13365
LIZA P. SARGENT DATE

 CHECKED:   RH

LP
S

LP
S

22
-N

O
V-

19
S 

& 
M

M
P 

N
O

TE
S,

 R
AI

SE
D

 G
R

AD
E 

2 
FT

1

LP
S

LP
S

11
-D

EC
-1

9
AD

D
ED

 D
R

AI
N

AG
E 

PI
PI

N
G

 &
 IN

VE
R

TS
2

LP
S

LP
S

26
-J

AN
-2

3
PH

AS
E 

II 
3

2/9/23

25 of 32

Proposed Conditions Plan



S70°02'28"E  168.31'

N70°02'28"W  177.00'

S54°16'31"E  231.72'

N54°16'31"W  220.72'

42.99'

48
0

48
0

480

476
478

480

480

492

490

480

474

476
478

480

482

486

488

470

472

S70°02'28"E  168.31'

N70°02'28"W  177.00'

S54°16'31"E  231.72'

N54°16'31"W  220.72'

48
5

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

481

482

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

LIMITS OF PHASE II

LIMITS OF PHASE I

482

476474

474

480

482
482

48
6

48
8 490

474

474

476

482

48
0

SD

SD

SD

47
4

28.066ft

47
4

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

W

W

W

W

SF

SF

SF

SF SF

SF SF

482

482

477

477

484

48248
2

480

48
0

488

486

484

48
4

48
2

481

47
4

476

482

48
0

SD

SD

6+
00

50

48
2

SF

SF
SF

SF

477

474

478

47
6

481

481

DATE:

PROJ. #:

GRADING & DRAINAGE
PLAN- PHASE I NORTH

GRAPHIC SCALE 1" =

0 10' 20' 40'

20'

D
ra

w
in

g 
na

m
e:

 P
:\P

ro
je

ct
\N

H
 P

R
O

JE
C

TS
\K

26
65

 5
60

 M
ai

n 
St

re
et

, L
LC

\D
w

g\
K2

66
5 

SI
TE

 P
ha

se
 II

.d
w

g 
  F

eb
 0

9,
  2

02
3 

- 1
:1

6p
m

c

N
O

.
R

EV
IS

IO
N

D
AT

E
D

W
N

C
H

K

SHEET

C-2

N

560 MAIN STREET

560 MAIN STREET, LLC
Peterborough, NH 03458
590 Hancock Road

-SEPT- 1920

K2665K2665

DESIGN:  LPS
DRAWN: LPS

SVE 2020

Engineering
Planning
Landscape Architecture
Surveying

SVE Associates
P.O. Box 1818
439 West River Road
Brattleboro, VT 05302
T   802.257.0561
F   802.257.0721
www.sveassoc.com

R.C.E. NUMBER: 13365
LIZA P. SARGENT                       DATE

 CHECKED: LPS

LP
S

LP
S

22
-N

O
V-

19
R

AI
SE

D
 F

IN
IS

H
 G

R
AD

E 
& 

ST
O

R
M

 D
R

AI
N

 2
 F

T
1

LP
S

LP
S

26
-J

AN
-2

3
PA

R
KI

N
G

, P
H

AS
E 

II 
D

U
M

PS
TE

R
 

2

2/9/23

26 of 32



480

480

48
2

47
8

SD

SD

SD

478

W

W

W

W

W

SF

SF

SF

SF

477 477

477

482

478

47
6

482

47
9

47
9

48
0

48
0

480
478

481

481

480

478

478

482

479

480

DATE:

PROJ. #:

GRADING &
DRAINAGE
PLAN-PHASE II SOUTH

GRAPHIC SCALE 1" =

0 5' 10' 20'

10'

D
ra

w
in

g 
na

m
e:

 P
:\P

ro
je

ct
\N

H
 P

R
O

JE
C

TS
\K

26
65

 5
60

 M
ai

n 
St

re
et

, L
LC

\D
w

g\
K2

66
5 

SI
TE

 P
ha

se
 II

.d
w

g 
  F

eb
 0

9,
  2

02
3 

- 1
:1

6p
m

c

N
O

.
R

EV
IS

IO
N

D
AT

E
D

W
N

C
H

K

SHEET

C-4

N

560 MAIN STREET

560 MAIN STREET, LLC
Peterborough, NH 03458
590 Hancock Road

-SEPT- 1920

K2665K2665

DESIGN:  LPS
DRAWN: LPS

SVE 2020

Engineering
Planning
Landscape Architecture
Surveying

SVE Associates
P.O. Box 1818
439 West River Road
Brattleboro, VT 05302
T   802.257.0561
F   802.257.0721
www.sveassoc.com

R.C.E. NUMBER: 13365
LIZA P. SARGENT                       DATE

 CHECKED:   RH

LP
S

LP
S

22
-N

O
V-

19
R

AI
SE

D
 F

IN
IS

H
 G

R
AD

E 
& 

ST
O

R
M

 D
R

AI
N

 2
 F

T
1

LP
S

LP
S

26
-J

AN
-2

3
PH

AS
E 

II 
3

2/9/23

27 of 32



BP: 0+00.00

PI: 1+04.08

PI
: 2

+7
1.

39

PI: 4+95.21

EP: 5
+32.42

0+00

1+00

2+
00

3+00

4+00

5+00

5+32
S

S

S

S70°02'28"E  168.31'

N70°02'28"W  177.00'

S54°16'31"E  231.72'

N54°16'31"W  220.72'

42.99'

48
0

48
0

480

492

480

480

480

472

47
2

474

476

47
8

48
2

48
5

SD

SD

SD

SD

S
S

S

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

OH

482

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

UE

UE

UE

UE

UE

UE

UE

LIMITS OF PHASE II

LIMITS OF PHASE I

482

476474

480

480

474
482

48
0

SD

SD

SD

SD

47
4

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

S

6" A
C

6" AC
SMH RIM: 470.97

INV E: 465.0

INV SE: 465.5

INV W: 465.0

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

0+50

1+
50

2+
50

3+50

4+50

10' MIN

10' MIN
TYP.

477.1

476.7

476.4 476.4 476.4

482

484

477

48248
2

480

48
4

48
2

481

47
4

476

482

48
0

SD

SD

10' MIN
TYP.

10'6'

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

UE

UE

UE

UE

UE

UE

UE

UE

UE

UE

UE

UE

UE

UE

UE

UE

UE

UE

UEUE

UE

UE

UE

UE

UE

UE

UE

OH

OH

UE
UE

UE
UE

UE
UE

UE

UE

UE

UE

UE

10' M
IN

TYP.

482

478

47
6

47
9 47

9

48
0

48
0

480
478

481

481

DATE:

PROJ. #:

UTILITY PLAN

GRAPHIC SCALE 1" =

0 10' 20' 40'

20'

D
ra

w
in

g 
na

m
e:

 P
:\P

ro
je

ct
\N

H
 P

R
O

JE
C

TS
\K

26
65

 5
60

 M
ai

n 
St

re
et

, L
LC

\D
w

g\
K2

66
5 

SI
TE

 P
ha

se
 II

.d
w

g 
  F

eb
 0

9,
  2

02
3 

- 1
:1

6p
m

c

N
O

.
R

EV
IS

IO
N

D
AT

E
D

W
N

C
H

K

SHEET

C-5

N

560 MAIN STREET

560 MAIN STREET, LLC
Peterborough, NH 03458
590 Hancock Road

-SEPT- 1920

K2665K2665

DESIGN:  LPS
DRAWN: LPS

SVE 2020

Engineering
Planning
Landscape Architecture
Surveying

SVE Associates
P.O. Box 1818
439 West River Road
Brattleboro, VT 05302
T   802.257.0561
F   802.257.0721
www.sveassoc.com

R.C.E. NUMBER: 13365
LIZA P. SARGENT                       DATE

 CHECKED: LPS

LP
S

LP
S

22
-N

O
V-

19
R

AI
SE

D
 F

IN
IS

H
 G

R
AD

E 
& 

ST
O

R
M

 D
R

AI
N

 2
 F

T
1

LP
S

LP
S

26
-J

AN
-2

3
PH

AS
E 

II 
2

2/9/23

28 of 32



//

//
//

//

//

S70°02'28"E  168.31'

N70°02'28"W  177.00'

S54°16'31"E  231.72'

N54°16'31"W  220.72'

48
0

480

480

48
0

480

470

480

480

490

486

482

486

480

478

48
6

474

476

2

48
2

SD

SD

SD

SD

482

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

-06

MW-11

-05/MW-5

-04

480

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD
SD

W

W

W

W

W

47
4

474

SF SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

477 477

477

477

48248
2

48
0

SD

47
7

10'6'

484

48
2

47
8

482

478

47
6

482

47
9 47

9

48
0

48
0

480
478

481

481

480

478

478

482

479

480

DATE:

PROJ. #:

STORMWATER
TREATMENT
SWALES

GRAPHIC SCALE 1" =

0 10' 20' 40'

20'

D
ra

w
in

g 
na

m
e:

 P
:\P

ro
je

ct
\N

H
 P

R
O

JE
C

TS
\K

26
65

 5
60

 M
ai

n 
St

re
et

, L
LC

\D
w

g\
K2

66
5 

SI
TE

 P
ha

se
 II

.d
w

g 
  F

eb
 0

9,
  2

02
3 

- 1
:1

6p
m

c

N
O

.
R

EV
IS

IO
N

D
AT

E
D

W
N

C
H

K

SHEET

C-12

N

560 MAIN STREET

560 MAIN STREET, LLC
Peterborough, NH 03458
590 Hancock Road

-SEPT- 1920

K2665K2665

DESIGN:  LPS
DRAWN: LPS

SVE 2020

Engineering
Planning
Landscape Architecture
Surveying

SVE Associates
P.O. Box 1818
439 West River Road
Brattleboro, VT 05302
T   802.257.0561
F   802.257.0721
www.sveassoc.com

R.C.E. NUMBER: 13365
LIZA P. SARGENT                       DATE

 CHECKED: LPSNOT TO SCALE

12
"

NOT TO SCALE

ALL ORIFICES 8" OR SMALLER SHALL HAVE A TRASH RACK

CATCH BASIN

INVERT W/ TRASH RACKS
VERTICAL ORIFICE

HORIZ. INVERT 

NO SCALE

1
2"X2"

MAX. OPENING
ALL SIDES & TOP

LP
S

LP
S

07
-O

C
T-

19
PB

 S
TA

FF
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
1

LP
S

LP
S

17
-O

C
T-

19
R

AI
SE

D
 G

R
AD

E 
2 

FE
ET

2

LP
S

LP
S

16
-D

EC
-1

9
D

ES
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
3

8"

LP
S

LP
S

03
-J

AN
-2

0
D

ET
EN

TI
O

N
 P

O
N

D
 O

U
TL

ET
 D

IA
M

ET
ER

4

LP
S

LP
S

26
-J

AN
-2

3
PH

AS
E 

II 
5

2/9/23

29 of 32



S70°02'28"E  168.31'

N70°02'28"W  177.00'

S54°16'31"E  231.72'

N54°16'31"W  220.72'

42.99'

 TRUCK SHOP,
PHASE 2

F.F. ELEV.=483.0

R
O

O
F 

PI
TC

H
 7

%

6" C
U

R
B

6" CURB

OFFICE, PHASE 2
F.F. ELEV.=483.0

LIMITS OF PHASE II
LIMITS OF PHASE I

ROOF PITCH

ROOF PITCH

2%

1.6%

28.066ft

ROOF PITCH

CORD
WOOD

PRODUCTION,
PHASE 2

F.F. ELEV.=483.0

DATE:

PROJ. #:

LANDSCAPING
PLAN

GRAPHIC SCALE 1" =

0 15' 30' 60'

30'

D
ra

w
in

g 
na

m
e:

 P
:\P

ro
je

ct
\N

H
 P

R
O

JE
C

TS
\K

26
65

 5
60

 M
ai

n 
St

re
et

, L
LC

\D
w

g\
K2

66
5 

SI
TE

 P
ha

se
 II

.d
w

g 
  F

eb
 0

9,
  2

02
3 

- 1
:1

7p
m

c

N
O

.
R

EV
IS

IO
N

D
AT

E
D

W
N

C
H

K

SHEET

LA-1

N

560 MAIN STREET

560 MAIN STREET, LLC
Peterborough, NH 03458
590 Hancock Road

-SEPT- 1920

K2665K2665

DESIGN:  LPS
DRAWN: TS/LPS

SVE 2020

Engineering
Planning
Landscape Architecture
Surveying

SVE Associates
P.O. Box 1818
439 West River Road
Brattleboro, VT 05302
T   802.257.0561
F   802.257.0721
www.sveassoc.com

R.C.E. NUMBER: 13365
LIZA P. SARGENT                       DATE

 CHECKED:   RH

DO NOT COMPACT
UNDISTURBED SUBSOIL

CLEAN ORGANIC BACKFILL

6" SAUCER AROUND TREE
4" SHREDDED BARK MULCH

OR 1/3 UP TREE
ATTACH @ FIRST BRANCH
#11 GAUGE WIRE TWISTED

REINFORCED RUBBER HOSE

DO NOT CUT CENTRAL LEADER
SELECTIVELY PRUNE CROWN 

GUYING STAKE

TREE WRAP AS REQUIRED

8" TYPICAL

#11 GAUGE WIRE

CEDAR STAKE

ROOT BALL
TREE WELL

2"x2"

2" MOUND

UNDISTURBED SOIL

SAUCER MOUND

TO EXISTING OR FINISHED GRADE
CLEAN ORGANIC BACKFILL

OR REMOVE PLANT FORM CONTAINER

REMOVE TOP 1/3 OF BURLAP

FINISHED GRADE
TOP OF BALL 2" BELOW 

4" MULCH & 30"

LP
S

LP
S

07
-O

C
T-

19
BA

LS
AM

 F
IR

 T
O

 E
M

ER
AL

D
 G

R
EE

N
 A

R
BO

R
VI

TA
E

1

2/9/23

30 of 32



WF 11

WF 10

WF 8 BS TS

WF 6 START

WF 5WF 1

WF 2

WF 3

WF 4

WF 7

[114-016-000]
ROMAN CATHOLIC BISHOP

OF MANCHESTER NH
153 Ash Street

Manchester, NH 03104
192/304

"CEMETERY"

[114-014-000]
DPKR REALTY LLC

28 Owens Drive #24
Swanzey, NH 03446

2899/472

[114-013-000]
580 MAIN STREET LLC

PO Box 177
Chesterfield, NH 03443

2383/541

[114-009-000]
MARGARET M. &

ROBERT B.
TREBILCOCK

46-50 Manchester St.
Keene, NH 03431

2029/101

[114-008-000]
DIANE E. &

TARA M. TINKER
52 Manchester St.
Keene, NH 03431

2339/570

[114-007-000]
RDH PROPERTY

MANAGEMENT LLC
PO Box 1090

Keene, NH 03431-1090
2760/10

[114-006-000]
ONROE MUFFLER

BRAKE INC
200 Holleder Pkwy

ochester, NY 14615-3808
2606/922

[114-003-000]
ONROE MUFFLER BRAKE INC

200 Holleder Pkwy
Rochester, NY 14615-3808

2606/922

[114-012-100]
9.885 Acres±

430,607 Sq.Ft.±

60.45' Frontage
(Manchester Street)

ZONE X
ZONE AE - 1%

15' SIDE SETBACK

15
' S

ID
E 

SE
TB

AC
K

20
' R

EA
R

 S
ET

BA
C

K15' SIDE SETBACK

20' FRONT SETBACK

20' FRONT SETBACK

528' ± ALONG THE BRANCH RIVER

40
' A

CCESS EASEMENT TO M
ANCHESTER STREET

62.5'±

62.5'±

41.20'
108.40'

S63°52'57"E  443.03'

N63°52'57"W  430.99'

S70°02'28"E  168.31'

N70°02'28"W  177.00'

S54°16'31"E  231.72'

N54°16'31"W  220.72'

42.99'

40'  PROPOSED

ACCESS EASEMENT

FLOODWAY

30' BUFFER

SURFACE WATER OVERLAY ZONE

ASPHALT

ASPHALT

GRAVEL

LIDAR

GROUND SURVEY

48
0

48
0

480

476
478

480

480

492

490

480

474

480

490

490

480

476

474

480

480

48
0

480

470

466

470

480

480

474

476
478

480

482

486

488

472

47
2

474

476

47
8

470

472

490

486

482

482

486
480

478

48
6

474

474

476

472

48
2

15' SIDE SETBACK

15
' S

ID
E 

SE
TB

AC
K

20
' R

EA
R

 S
ET

BA
C

K20' SIDE SETBACK

20' FRONT SETBACK

20' FRONT SETBACK

528' ± ALONG THE BRANCH RIVER

ASPHALT

GRAVEL

48
5

SD

GRAVEL

GRAVEL

GRAVEL

GRAVEL

GRAVEL

GRAVEL SD

SD

481

482

SD

SD

SD

482

480

482

SD

SD

28.066ft

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SD

S

6" A
C

6" ACSMH RIM:

470.97

INV E: 465.0

INV SE:

465.5

INV W: 465.0

SD

SD

SD

47
4474

482

48
2

478

477

477

484

477 477

477

477

48248
2

480

48
0

488
486

484

48
4

48
2

481

47
4

476

482

47
4

474

47
2

48
0

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

474

477

474

472

47
2

47
7

484

48
2

47
8

482

478

47
6

482

47
9 47

9

48
0

48
0

480
478

481
481

480

478
478

482

479

480

DATE:

PROJ. #:

RENTAL AREA
EXHIBIT

GRAPHIC SCALE 1" =

0 20' 40' 80'

40'

D
ra

w
in

g 
na

m
e:

 P
:\P

ro
je

ct
\N

H
 P

R
O

JE
C

TS
\K

26
65

 5
60

 M
ai

n 
St

re
et

, L
LC

\D
w

g\
K2

66
5 

SI
TE

 P
ha

se
 II

.d
w

g 
  F

eb
 0

9,
  2

02
3 

- 1
:1

7p
m

c

N
O

.
R

EV
IS

IO
N

D
AT

E
D

W
N

C
H

K

EXHIBIT

A

N

560 MAIN STREET

560 MAIN STREET, LLC
Peterborough, NH 03458
590 Hancock Road

-SEPT- 1920

K2665K2665

DESIGN:  LPS
DRAWN: TS/LPS

SVE 2020

Engineering
Planning
Landscape Architecture
Surveying

SVE Associates
P.O. Box 1818
439 West River Road
Brattleboro, VT 05302
T   802.257.0561
F   802.257.0721
www.sveassoc.com

R.C.E. NUMBER: 13365
LIZA P. SARGENT                       DATE

 CHECKED:   LPS

LIMITS OF RENTAL YARD, TYP.

2/9/23

31 of 32



N

GRAPHIC SCALE:   1” = 12’

0 5 10 20 50 70 110 15030

FROLING ENERGY HQ

PHASE TWO

20 MANCHESTER STREET
KEENE, NH 03431

MAIN OFFICE AND TRUCK SHOP

FEBRUARY 2023
MARK FROLING - OWNER, PRESIDENT

DESIGNED BY HAZEL FROLING

100’

50’

90
’

15
’

75
’

24
’

18
’6

”

18
’6

”

16
’

16
’

20
’

20
’

24
’

24
’

24
’

NORTH ELEVATION EAST ELEVATION

SOUTH ELEVATION

FIRST FLOOR

SECOND FLOOR

WEST ELEVATION

BUSINESS
OFFICE

PRESIDENT’S
OFFICE

WAITING 
AREA

BOOKKEEPING
OFFICE

WC

CLOSED STORAGE ROOM

OPEN STORAGE SPACE

CORD WOOD 
PROCESSING

FACILITY

TRUCK BAY ONE TRUCK BAY TWO

SERVICE 
MANAGER
OFFICE

BREAK
ROOM

SHOW ROOM

CONFERENCE
ROOM

WC WC

32 of 32


	2023_03_02_MPRC Agenda
	2023_01_26_MPRC_Minutes_MF Edits
	2023_02_02_MPRC_Minutes_MF Edits
	Froling Packet
	Application_Received 01-20-23
	Narrative_Received 01-20-23
	Elevations_Received 02-14-23_REDUCED




